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February 10, 1987 

The Honorable W&am D. Ford 
Chairman, Committee on Post Office 

and Civil Service 
House of Representatives 

Dear Mr Chairman: 

This report responds to your request that we inquire into, and report on, 
several issues related to legal work performed by a private law firm 
under contract with the IJ.S Postal Service’s Board of Governors A 
partner of the firm serves as Counsel to the Board. 

Based on your letter requesting the work and on agreements reached m 
subsequent meetings with your representatives, this report provides 
mformation on (1) the Board’s contract for legal services, (2) the process 
used by the Board to authorize having legal work done by its outside 
counsel, (3) the total costs of such work, (4) the Board’s authority to 
approve Postal Service expenditures, (5) the Service’s authority to 
expend funds for legal services provided by the Board’s outside counsel 
m connection with investigations of actions by the Board’s Chairman, 
Mr. *John IL McKean, and (6) Mr. McKean’s involvement, as Board 
Chairman, in the Board’s decision to pay for legal services done m con- 
nection with the investigatrons. 

‘l’o respond to your request, we interviewed both Postal Service and 
Board officials and reviewed relevant laws, regulations and policies gov- 
erning the Board’s operations and employee conduct. We also obtained 
and analyzed (1) transcripts of the Board’s open and closed meetings 
dealing with the authorization of, and payment for, legal work and (2) 
the bills submitted by the Board’s Counsel for the last 4 months of fiscal 
year 1980 through the first 10 months of fiscal year 1986. Our work was 
performed from September 1985 through September 1986 at the Postal 
Service’s Washmgton, D.C. headquarters m accordance with generally 
accepted government auditing standards. 

The results of our work are summarized below. Appendix I provides 
details on the costs incurred by the Board for all legal services provided 
by its outside counsel since the inception of the contract for such ser- 
vices m *June 1980 Appendix II provides our opinions on the legal issues 
involved. 
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Board of Governors’ 
Contract for Legal 
Services 

From its founding in 1970 until June 1980, the Board was represented in 
legal matters by the Postal Service’s General Counsel and received legal 
assistance from attorneys employed by the Service’s Law Department. 
The Service’s General Counsel was also the Board’s Counsel. In June 
1980, after deciding that it needed independent legal assistance, the 
Board selected the private law firm of Califano, Ross and Heinman to 
provide legal services. Mr. Joseph A. Califano, Jr., served as the Board’s 
Counsel. In January 1983, the contract was shifted to the law firm of 
Dewey, Ballentme, Bushby, Palmer and Wood when Mr. Cahfano 
became a partner in the firm Mr. Cahfano continued to serve as the 
Board’s Counsel. 

The current contract has no fixed term or amount. It can be terminated 
by either party with a written 30-day notice that 1s addressed to or 
signed by the Board’s Chairman. The current maximum hourly rates for 
attorneys are $160 for Mr. Califano, $160 for other partners and $140 
for associates. The contract also provides for reimbursmg all “other” 
out-of-pocket costs incurred incident to providing legal services (e.g., 
travel and administrative expenses). 

Haw Legal Services 
Are Authorized and 
P$id for 

From the June 1980 begmnmg of the contract for outside counsel, until 
January 1985, any Governor on the Board could ask Mr. Califano or 
other attorneys in the two firms he has been associated with to provide 
legal services. However, the Board’s Executive Secretary told us that, in 
January 1985, the Board’s Chairman advised the other Governors that 
all future requests for legal work should come through him or the 
Board’s Executive Secretary to ensure that (1) both knew of all work 
being done, (2) there was no duphcation of effort requested, and (3) pri- 
ority work was done first. In September 1986, the contract was changed 
to provide that services other than attendance at meetings of the Board 
of Governors will be furnished only on the specific request of the 
Chairman (or, in the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman) who 
will identify the particular matter on which advice and counsel is 
requested. 

The monthly bills submitted by the Board’s Counsel generally describe 
the work done and the main issues involved (e.g., reviewing transcripts 
and pleading at the Postal Rate Commission concerning the Service’s 
proposed sale of its electronic communications service). The Board’s 
Executive Secretary approves the bills for payment by the Service. The 
Board as a whole does not authorize or approve payment for the total 
bill or for any of the specific tasks performed Starting m September 
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1986, the monthly bills are to identify the particular legal services ren- 
dered and copies of the bills are to be distributed to the Chairman of the 
Board, the Chairman of the Board’s Audit Committee, and the General 
Counsel of the Postal Service. 

Cost of Legal Services Cost data for the Board’s contract for legal services is shown in two 
tables in appendix I. Table I.1 shows that total contract costs, including 
the 4 months the contract was m effect in fiscal year 1980, through the 
first 10 months of fiscal year 1986 amounted to about $2.9 million. The 
costs for the first full fiscal year of the contract-1981-were 
$295,100. In comparison, the costs for the most recent full fiscal year 
(1985) at the time of our review were $666,100. Table I.2 shows that 
both the cost of attorney’s fees and incidental expenses have contrib- 
uted to this increase. 

Authority of Board and The Postal Reorganization Act of 1970 provides the Board of Governors 

Postal Service to 
Expend Funds for 
Legal Services 

with the authority to direct and control the expenditures of the Postal 
Service. 39 U.S.C.§ 205(a). Similarly, the Service has broad authority 
under the Act to expend such funds as it deems necessary for carrying 
out the purposes of the Act. Thus, we believe the Board has the 
authority to approve, and the Service to make, expenditures for legal 
services in support of the official interests of the Board and the Service. 

Board Authority Not 
Cnlimited 

The Board’s authority to expend funds for legal services is not, how- 
ever, unlimited. In this regard, the Postal Reorganization Act makes 
clear that Postal Service funds are available only to carry out the pur- 
poses, functions, and powers authorized by the Act and that funds must 
be expended in furtherance of official interests of the Postal Service. 39 * 
U.S.C. Q 2003. Thus, Postal Service funds are not available to pay the 
personal expenses of any Postal Service employee. Equally clear is the 
prmciple that federal agencies, such as the Postal Service, cannot 
expend funds for the legal representation of any employee for acts 
which occurred prior to their federal employment. 28 C.F.R. $j§ 50.15- 
50.16; 55 Comp. Gen. 408 (1975). Such legal expenses are consistently 
regarded as the personal expenses of the employee rather than expenses 
undertaken to further the official interests of the government. Mr. 
McKean’s March 1984 testimony before the Senate Judiciary Committee 
was wholly on his preemployment activities. We do not believe any offi- 
cial interest of the Board was served by preparing Mr. McKean for, and 
providing him representation during, the Senate hearings. 
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The record supports the view that Mr. Califano appeared with Mr 
McKean before the Senate Judiciary Committee solely to represent Mr. 
McKean’s personal interests. The hearings were on the nomination of 
Mr. Edwin Meese III to be Attorney General of the United States. Mr. 
McKean’s participation in the hearings concerned the allegations that 
Mr. Meese’s recommendation of Mr. McKean’s appointment was influ- 
enced by certain loans Mr. McKean had arranged for Mr. Meese. Mr. 
McKean’s testimony focused entirely on his relationship with Mr. Meese 
before he was appointed to the Board of Governors. Mr. McKean was not 
asked to testify on any matter even remotely related either to his duties 
as a member of the Board or to Postal Service actrvities. There is nothing 
in the record to justify Mr. Califano’s presence at the hearings in his 
capacity as the Board’s Counsel. The Committee was not interested in, 
nor did it solicit the views of, the Postal Service or the Board of 
Governors. 

The Postal Service was thus not authorized to pay for Mr. Califano’s 
representation of Mr. McKean. Because the bills submitted by the 
Board’s Counsel do not identify charges with specific tasks, it is not fea- 
sible for us to determine the amount of Service funds expended for this 
work. Moreover, since we do not have authority to settle claims or 
accounts with respect to the Postal Service, our opinion on these 
expenditures is advisory only. This issue is discussed in more detail on 
pages 14 to 18 of appendix II. 

ESqard Chairman’s 
Involtiement in 
Decision to Pay for 
bgal Fees 

Chairman McKean’s participation in the Board’s decision to pay for legal 
services connected with the investigations of his actions did not violate 
the criminal conflict of interest law in 18 USC. 8 208(a). This issue is 
discussed in detail on pages 18 and 20 of appendix II. 

Comments of the 
Ebard’s Executive 

The cost data included in appendix I, and the above information on the 
contract for legal services and how such services are authorized and 

Secretary and Counsel 
paid for, was reviewed by the Board’s Executive Secretary. Minor 
changes, orally suggested by the Secretary, were made in preparing our 
final report. A draft of appendix II providing our opmions on the legal 
issues involved was given to the Board’s Counsel for review and com- 
ment. By letter dated August 18, 1986, (see app. III) the Counsel for the 
Board disagreed with our legal conclusion that the Board had no 
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authority to pay for legal services provided m support of Mr McKean’s 
appearance before the Senate Judiciary Committee 

The Hoard’s Counsel points out that we have said the Board had an offl- 
cm1 mterest m conducting, and could properly pay for, an mvestigation 
into the allegations concerning Mr McKean, and argues that we have no 
basis to treat the expenses incurred to defend Mr McKean at the hear- 
mgs any differently from these investigative activities We do not agree 
The allegations against Mr. McKean clearly affected the Postal Service 
and it had an official interest in investigating them Among other things 
it needed information to respond to inquiries from Congress and others 
lIowever, because the allegations concerned Mr. McKean’s personal con- 
duct before he became a member of the Board, conduct that had nothmg 
to do with the business of the Postal Service, the Board had no official 
mterttst, in defending Mr. McKean against those allegations 

The Hoard’s Counsel offers two arguments to support its view that Mr. 
Cahfano’s appearance with Mr McKean at the hearings furthered offi- 
cial interests of the Postal Service and that it therefore had the 
authority to pay for those services. First, Counsel asserts that the 
Senate Committee asked Mr. McKean to testify “on matters related 
directly to Mr. McKean’s] tenure on the Board,” and “about allegations 
concerning the manner in which the President had appointed a member 
of the Hoard.” As we understand it, the argument is that Mr McKean 
appeared before the Committee m his official capacity as a member of 
the Hoard and it was therefore proper for the Board’s Counsel to repre- 
sent him. In our view, the Committee was not interested in the views of 
the Hoard or its counsel on the issues at hand, and did not ask for those 
views It simply wanted to know if Mr. McKean’s appointment to the 
Hoard was influenced by loans arranged by Mr McKean, m his personal 
capacity, before he became a Board member. The purpose of the hcar- 
mgs was to explore this matter with Mr McKean personally We believe 
the record establishes that Mr. McKean testified in hrs personal capacity 
to defend his personal conduct, and that Mr. Cahfano appeared with Mr. 
McKean solely to represent him m the defense of his personal conduct, 
and not on behalf of any official interest of the Board. 

Tho 13oard’s Counsel also argues that the “allegations about which Mr 
McKoan was to testify threatened to undermine public confidence m the 
mtegrity of the Board and all its actions,” and Justifies the expenditure 
of Postal Scrvicc funds as appropriate because of the Board’s concern 
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that its integrity hinged on Mr. McKean’s. In our view, the Board’s con- 
cerns about the consequences of the hearings did not transform the pur- 
pose of the hearings, the identity of the interest at stake, or Mr. 
Califano’s task. The purpose of the hearings was to inquire into loans 
made by Mr. McKean in his personal capacity, and rt was Mr. McKean’s 
personal interests that were at stake, not the Board’s. Mr. Califano’s 
task was to represent Mr. McKean’s personal interests m those proceed- 
ings, and our opmron remains that the Board had no authority to pay for 
that representation. 

As arranged with your office, unless you publicly announce its contents 
earlier, we plan no further distribution of this report until 10 days from 
the date of this report. At that time we will send copies to interested 
parties and make copies available to others upon request. 

Sincerely yours, 

P Charles A. Bowsher 
Comptroller General 
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Costs for Legal Services Contract 

Table 1.1: Annual Costs for Legal 
Services Contract0 Fiscal Year .- . -_----- --_ 

1980 
1981 -__-_.-..--_. .~_. 
1982 

Total Cost 
$88,700b 

295,100 
331.900 ig83 -_.. _._~ - _~~~. 
427,100 

1984 - 525,306 ----~---- - -~ ~~- - - -.. ~~- 
1985 888,100 i986~. - --_ 

Total 
58jJQO" 

$2,915,300 

aAll costs rounded to the nearest $100 

bContract In effect for 4 months of fiscal year 1980 

‘Contract costs for the first 10 months of fiscal year 1986 

Tablle 1.2: Breakdown of Annual Costs 
for Legal Services0 Fiscal Years 1981 to Other 
198J Fiscal Year Counsel Partners Associates Expenses __- _----_ ___-- --- - ~~~~ 

1981 $62,700 $123,100 $93,700 $15,600 1982 
- - -- 

---- 66,700 i13400-~~~. --igloo - ~- -. radii o. 

i983 
--___- .-~~~ ..-- ~.. .-_~~ . -. .~ -~~ 

74,100 136,100 157,200 59,700 
1984‘ 

- 
75,700 119,500 221,800 108,200 

i985 76,900 194,700 222,600 171,900 
Total - 

_.---..-~ - .--- 
$356,100 $686,800 $826,000 $378,500 

aAll costs rounded to the nearest $100 
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Authority of the Postal Service to Expend 
Funds for Legal Support Services 

I. Digests: _ -___ 

1. IJnder the Postal Reorganization Act, Pub. L. No. 91-375,84 Stat 719 
(1970), the power to direct and control the expenditures of the Postal 
Service is specifically assigned to the Board of Governors 39 USC. § 
205(a) 

2. The Postal Service has broad authority to expend such funds as it 
“deems necessary” to carry out the purposes of the Postal Reorganiza- 
tion Act, Pub. I,. No 91-375,84 Stat. 719 (1970). 39 U.S.C. I% 2003(a), 
2008(c). The Postal Service can expend funds, however, only for those 
legal services which further official interests of the Service and are not 
personal expenses of any employee. We do not think that the Postal Ser- 
vice had an official interest in Mr. McKean’s testimony before the Senate 
Judiciary Committee. 

3. Mr. McKean’s involvement m the Board of Governors’ payment of a 
private law firm’s fees did not violate 18 U.S.C § 208(a), the criminal 
provision which pertains to conflicts of interest. 

II. Background. 

In November 1981, the President nominated, and the Senate on March 8, 
1982 confirmed, Mr McKean to be a member of the Board of Governors 
of the Postal Service (Board). Mr. McKean’s term would have expired on 
December 8, 1986 However, the President nominated Mr. McKean for a 
second term on January 26,1983. On February 24,1983, the Senate con- 
firmed Mr. McKean’s appointment His present term expires on 
December 8, 199 1 

In July 1983, the House Committee on Post Office and Civil Service 
(House Committee) asked our Office to investigate certain issues that 
had surfaced m connection with the nomination of Edwin Meese to be 
Attorney General of the United States. One of the issues involved Mr. 
Meese’s recommendation, while he was counselor to the President, to 
appoint Mr McKean as a member of the Board of Governors. In partic- 
ular, we were asked to examine allegations that Mr. Meese’s recommen- 
dation of Mr. McKean was influenced by certain loans made to Mr 
Meese by Mr. McKean’s accounting firm, John R. McKean, Accountants, 
P.C. In response to GAO’S investigation and the allegations reported in 
the press concerning Mr. McKean’s appointment, Mr. Robert Hardesty, 
then the Chairman of the Board of Governors, directed the Board’s 
counsel, the firm of Dewey, Ballantine, Bushby, Palmer & Wood (Dewey, 
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Authority of the Postal Service to Expend 
Funds for Legal Support Services 

Ballantine or firm), to independently investigate the allegations sur- 
rounding Mr. McKean’s appointment and to handle requests for mforma- 
tion concerning this matter. Mr. McKean stated that Chairman Hardesty 
had directed Dewey, Ballantine to provide such legal support “at my 
request.” Transcript of Closed Meeting of the Board of Governors at 1 
(April 1984). 

Subsequently, the Senate Judiciary Committee, acting in support of the 
Senate’s constitutional duty to advise and consent to the Presidential 
nomination of Edwin Meese, initiated an investigation into Mr. Meese’s 
role in a variety of matters, including the nommatlon of Mr. McKean. 
The Committee requested that the Board provide information on Mr. 
McKean’s appointment and that Mr. McKean testify at Mr. Meese’s con- 
firmation hearings m March 1984. Dewey, Ballantine responded to ques- 
tions from the Senate Judiciary Committee and Mr. Joseph Califano, a 
partner in the firm, appeared with Mr. McKean at the hearings before 
the Committee. 

Under 28 U.S.C. § 692, the United States Court of Appeals for the Dis- 
trict of Columbia appointed Mr Jacob Stem, an independent counsel, to 
investigate certain allegations concerning Mr. Meese, including his role 
in Mr. McKean’s appointment. After this mvestlgation began in April 
1984, the Board made a distinction between (1) issues that related to the 
appointment of Mr. McKean to the Board of Governors and the appoint- 
ment process, and (2) issues related to the “private matters” of Mr 
McKean’s accounting firm According to Mr Califano, the Board distin- 
guished between inquiries mto “the appomtment process of Mr 
McKean,” and, on the other hand: 

“matters related to activities of Mr McKean’s public accounting firm representmg 
Mr. Meese relating to tax returns, tax advice, and those kmds of matters. All of Ir 

those matters, including incidentally the testimony of one of his partners before the 
Grand Jury have all been handled by a private firm at Mr McKean’s personal 
expense ” 

Transcript of Closed Meeting of the Board of Governors at 5 (August 1984) 

According to Dewey, Ballantine, the firm handled questions and gath- 
ered information pertainmg to Mr. McKean’s appomtment. The law firm 
of Cooley, Godward, Castro, Huddleson and Tatum represented Mr 
McKean’s accounting firm m connectron with the Independent counsel’s 
investigation. 
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Authority of the Postal Service to Expend 
Funds for Legnl Support Services 

The independent counsel concluded that there was no evidence that Mr. 
Meese solicited a loan from Mr McKean with the express or implied 
intention of assisting him in obtaining a government position Report of 
the Independent Counsel Concerning Edwin Meese III at 145 (September 
20, 1984). In addition, the independent counsel concluded that there was 
no evidence to mdicate that Mr McKean offered to arrange the loans 
with the understanding that Mr. Meese would so assist him. a. 

On September 6, 1984, the House Committee also asked our Office to 
review Mr. McKean’s role in the award of a Postal Service contract to 
the firm of Littler, Mendelson, Fastiff & Tichy (Littler, Mendelson). The 
IIouse Committee’s request stemmed from allegations that Mr McKean’s 
partlclpatlon m the contract award violated conflict of interest laws. 
The House Committee concurrently requested a similar mvestlgation to 
bc conducted by the Office of Government Ethics (OGE) Dewey, Ballan- 
tme provided legal support to the Board during these investigations Mr 
Cahfano described the nature of these legal services as follows: 

“[VI 11 m at tar ncby% N( ompamtld Hoard members, including Chalrman McKcan, to 
mtcrvicbws * * * [with GAO and OGE] In adchtlon, much of what we did for the Board 
did not directly involve Chairman McKean We assisted the Board m respondmg to 
1nvcQlgator s’ requests for access to records of closed Board meetmgs ” 

‘l’ranscrlpt of Closed Mectmg of the Board of Governors at 7 (July 1985) 

In addition to attending interviews with Board members and handling 
the access lssucs raised by GAO and OGE, we understand that the firm 
conducted an investigation mto the matter at the request of the Board 

GAO’S mvestlgatlon terminated m a referral of the matter to the Depart- 
ment of .Justlce (OGE also made a referral of the matter to Justice ) 
According to Dewey, Ballantine, after these referrals were made, Mr 
McKcan paid, and continues to pay, for any legal support provided to 
Mr. McKoan by the firm with respect to Justice’s criminal mvestlgatlon. 
“Ghan-man McKean advised the Board that he would bear the cost of 
legal work to assist him personally in any investlgatlon that the Justice 
Department may conduct.” a. at 5. 

By letter dated July 17, 1985, the House Committee requested our 
opmion on ( 1) the authority of the Board of Governors to approve Postal 
Service expenditures, (2) the authority of the Postal Service to expend 
funds for the legal services of Dewey, Ballantine m connection with con- 
gressional investigations mto Mr McKean’s appointment to the Board of 
Governors, and in connection with GAO and OGE’s investlgatlon of the 

* 
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Littler, Mendelson matter, and (3) the legality and propriety of Mr. 
McKean’s involvement m the Board’s payment of Dewey, Ballantine’s 
fees for legal servrces rendered during the congressional investigations. 
To provide the Board of Governors an opportunity to present its posl- 

tion on these issues, we requested, and on December 9, 1985, received, 
the views of the Board’s legal counsel 

III. Analysis: 

Question 1: Does the Board of Governors have authority to approve 
Postal Service expenditures? 

Answer. Yes. Under the Postal Reorgamzation Act (Act), Pub. L No 91- 
375,84 Stat. 719 (1970), the exercise of the power of the Postal Service 
is directed by a Board of Governors. 39 U.S.C § 202(a). Moreover, the 
power to direct and control the expenditures of the Postal Service is spe- 
crfrcally assigned to the Board of Governors 39 U S.C. § 205(a) 

One purpose of the Act was to vest in the Board of Governors exclusive 
authority to manage the Postal Service. See Governors of United States 
Postal Serv. v. United States Rate Comm’n., 654 F.2d 108 (D.C. Cir. 
1981) Under the Act, the Board has authority akin to that of a board of 
directors of a private corporation See H R Rep No. 91-1104,91st Cong , 
2d Sess. (1970). Therefore, we think the Board has authority to approve 
Postal Service expenditures, including expenditures of the Board. 

Question 2: Did the Postal Service have authority to expend funds for 
legal services rendered by Dewey, Ballantine during the various investi- 
gations into (1) Mr. McKean’s appointment to the Board of Governors, 
and (2) Mr. McKean’s mvolvement m the contract award to Littler, * 
Mendelson? 

Answer: The Postal Service has broad authority to expend such funds as 
it deems necessary for legal services rendered m support of the Postal 
Service or its Board of Governors. Even so, funds may be expended only 
for those legal services which further official interests and are not the 
personal responsibility of any federal employee In our opmion, the 
Postal Service did not have an official interest m preparing Mr. McKean 
for his testimony before the Senate .Judiciary Committee and in making 
Mr Cahfano available to accompany him to the hearings. 
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Authority of the Postal Service to Expend 
Funds for Legal Support Services 

Discussion: The Postal Reorganization Act of 1970 provided the Postal Service 
broad authority to enter mto and perform contracts, and determine the 
character and necessity for rts expenditures. 

“(c) Subject only to the provisions of this chapter [chapter 201, the I’ostal Service I$ 
authorized to make such expenditures and to enter into such contracts, agreements, 
and arrangements, upon such terms and condltlons and in such manner as it deems 
necessary, mcludmg the final settlement of all claims and litlgatlon by or against the 
Postal Service.” 39 1J.S C. 5 2008(c) (emphasis added) 

See also 39 lJ.S.C. @j 401(3), 401(10) Thus, the Postal Service has a 
degree of freedom similar to that afforded public corporations. See H- 
105397, September 21, 1951. Congress considered this broad delegation 
of expenditure authority to the Postal Service necessary to permit the 
Service to conduct its affairs on a “businesslike basis ” H.R. Rep. No. 91- 
1104,91st Cong., ‘2d Sess. 6 (1970). 

Despite the Postal Service’s broad authority to expend such funds as 
“deem[ed] necessary,” the Postal Service’s authority to expend funds for 
legal services is not unlimited. Specifically, the Postal Service’s 
authority to determine the necessity of its own expenditures does not 
permit the Board to condone an unlawful use. 14 Comp. Gen. 755 (1935), 
aff’d. A-60467, June 24, 1936; B-210929, August 2, 1983. In this regard, 
we think it is beyond dispute that Postal Service funds are not available 
to pay for purely personal legal services provided to its officers and 
employees. Stated conversely, Postal Service expenditures for legal ser- 
vices must be u-t furtherance of official interests of the agency. See 39 
I7.S C. @j 2003(a) (Postal Service funds available to carry out authorized 
purposes, functions, and powers of the Postal Service). The lme of 
demarcation between official and personal expenses is not always 
clearly drawn.’ An expenditure which primarily advances an official 
agency function or ObJectWe may be allowed, however, even if it also 

‘In H-133209, November 26, 1974, we recognized that President Nuton had a mqor personal stdke m 
the outcome of the impeachment mvestlgatlon Nonetheless, we upheld the payment of legal expenses 
incurred by the White IIouse m connectlon with the investigation, concludmg that the President’s role 
dnd mtrrests extended beyond h19 personal desire to remain m office 

“‘l’hus 11 may be said that a President does have an official as well as wrsonal stake m an Impeach- 
ment mvestq(ation Further, we beheve that It would be mappropnate--lf not lm~sslble-tor our 
OffIre to attempt to sepdrdte a President’s personal and official roles, or to pass upon the smcerlty or 
reasonableness of a l’resldent’s behef m his mnocence or his behef that his detense 15 dcsgned to 
vindicate his office a.5 well as himself ” 

&j dt 7 
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Authority of the Postal Service to Expend 
Fund8 for Legal Support Services 

happens to benefit an mdlvldual employee,Z but an expenditure, not spo- 
ciflcally authorized by legislation and not primarily in furtherance of an 
official agency interest, 1s not allowed.” The focus in the present case, 
therefore, is on whether the expenditures were for services which were 
primarily in furtherance of an official agency interest 

As noted earlier, Dewey, Ballantine performed a variety of servlc(‘s m 
connection with the allegations surroundmg Mr McKean’s appoint,mcnt 
to the Board In summary, Dewey, Ballantine conducted an mvestlgatlon 
into the allegations reported m the press. During its mvestlgatlon, the 
law firm interviewed members of the Roard, mcludmg Mr McKean, and 
reviewed Mr McKean’s records. The firm also handled requests for 
information that arose m connection with the mvestlgatlons initiated by 
the congressional committees and the independent counsel In addition, 
Mr Cahfano appeared with Mr. McKean at the confirmation hearmgs of 
Mr Mcese before the Senate Judiciary Committee. 

Counsel for the Hoard maintains that payment for all such legal servlct’s 
1s clearly wlthm the Postal Service’s broad expenditure authority In 
particular, they contend that the allegations concerning Mr McKean’s 
appointment called into question the integrity of the Board and all of its 
actions; therefore, the Board had a legitimate interest in having the 
matter carefully and impartially reviewed by the fu-m Counsel for the 
Board also points out that the Postal Service “had a substantial interest 
m cooperating with other branches of government” conducting theu- 
own mvcstlgatlons of this matter; consequently, Dewey, Ballantmo’s ser- 
vices furthered an official interest. Dewey, Ballantine also argues that 
“the Board unquestionably had a legitimate and substantial interest m 
minimizing the personal costs and risks faced by one of its members 
when those costs and risks were occasioned by the very fact of, and tor * 
no other reason than, his having accepted an appointment to the Hoard ” 
-- -_____ --_____--. _ . 
%‘or c~xamplr, we dpprOvcd, as prlmdnly for the beneflt of the government, the uw of dppropt I.itt,d 
funds to pay for physical exams and lab tests for fcdcral employees dt d c hcmlcdl wdf fdr? ldbrn ntof y 
‘I%(~ exams w(W mtcndtad to detect ar%nic poi~ning m It’, early stages w as to prrvcW c~mploytic- 
tllnt% dnd conwqrrent loss m workmg timr 22 Comp Gen 32 (1942) SW also 46 Comp (kn 2 I ‘) 
( 19M), 3 Camp Gcn 433 (1924) 

“‘l’hc Comptrokr General has disapproved use of a general appropnation to employ a dot-tar to g~vct 
prc~c~mploymcnt oxamlnatlons because such exammatlons were “personal c~xpcmt:~” of ttrc- lob qq)h- 
(ants Imphc*lt m the declslon was the fact that thew mdivlduals were not cmploycac+ of tbc govcst tl- 
mrnt <it the tnnc of the exammatmns Hence, it was not clear that the expcnsr was prlmarlly fot t hc 
bc*nrfit of the govc’rnmcxnt 22 Comp Gen 243 (1942) See dl%) 44 Camp Gen 312 ( 1964) and ( .L%T 
(*Ited thcaretn 
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Notwithstanding these arguments, we question whether all of Dewey, 
Ballantine’s services were rendered m furtherance of Postal Service 
interests.4 We can accept that the Board had an interest m conducting an 
independent mvestigatlon in response to allegations that Mr McKean 
had unlawfully obtained his position on the Board. The Board arguably 
had an interest m the veracity of the allegations in order to decide how 
to structure its relations with Mr. McKean, for example, in determining 
the sultabihty of Mr. McKean to be Chairman of the Board. We are hesl- 
tant to conclude that the firm’s investigation was not in furtherance of 
agency objectives m light of the broad expenditure authonty vested m 
the Board. We also think the Board had an official interest in responding 
to mqulrles from congressional committees and the independent counsel 
Given its broad discretion, we cannot legally object to the Board using 
Dewey, Ballantine to handle the requests for mformatlon 

In our opinion, however, the Postal Service did not have an official 
interest in preparing Mr. McKean for his testimony before the Senate 
Judiciary Committee, and in making Mr. Califano available to accom- 
pany him to the hearings. The hearings were to address the nommatlon 
of Edwin Meese to be Attorney General of the United States. They were 
m no way related to any duties of any member of the Board of Gover- 
nors The Committee did not solicit the views of any Board member, 
including Mr McKean’s, about Board matters. On the contrary, we 
understand that Mr. McKean was asked to testify at the hearings con- 
cerning loans he had made to Mr. Meese prior to his appointment to the 
13oard. There had been allegations that Mr. McKean’s appointment to the 
Board was influenced by these loans Mr McKean’s testimony was 
wholly on conduct that occurred prior to his being appointed to the 
Board. Nomination of Edwin Meese III: Hearings Before the Senate 
Comm. on the Judiciary, 98th Cong., 2nd Sess 602 (1984) (statement of 
John McKean). In these circumstances, we cannot perceive any official 
interest of the Postal Service, or the Board of Governors, in the Senate 
hearings. 

Dewey, Ballantine contends, however, that the Board had an interest in 
mmlmizmg the personal costs and risks faced by Mr. McKean because 
those costs and risks were due solely to his having accepted an appomt- 
ment to the Board In point of fact, the costs and risks were not due 
-- ---1_._ - ------. 
4GA0 doe?s not have authority to render bmdmg deaslons with respect to matlcr\ mvolvmg 1’05til 
Wv~e expenditures See B-164786, October 8, 1970, followed m 68 Comp Gen 640 (1979) Ilencc, - 
our opnuon on these expenditures is advisory only 
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solely to having accepted the appointment; they were due as well to allc- 
gations to the effect that he had purchased the appointment. More 
importantly, the costs incurred by the Postal Service were in connection 
with actions alleged to have occurred prior to Mr. McKean’s appoint- 
ment to and employment by the Board. The Board’s desire to munmize 
the personal costs and risks faced by a Board member in respondmg to 
allegations he and apparently the other Board members believed were 
false is entirely understandable. Such desire, however, does not estab- 
lish the necessary predicate to the Board’s defraying a member’s legal 
expenses, much less an official interest m the financial demands placed 
upon that member 

Applicable Justice Department regulations on representation of federal 
employees in civil and congressional proceedings, as well as decisions of 
the Comptroller General involving claims of federal employees for reim- 
bursement of private legal fees, are predicated on the employee’s action 
being within the scope of employment. See 28 C.F.R. @50.15-50 16; 55 
Comp. Gen. 408 (1975). Where an employee’s action is m discharge of an 
official duty, the government has a clear interest in providing legal rep- 
resentation. However, the government does not have an interest in pro- 
viding legal representation for questioned actions of an employee that 
predate federal employment. Since the hearings addressed Mr McKean’s 
actions that occurred prior to his appointment, and thus were actions 
not within the scope of his subsequent federal employment, the Board 
had no official interest in the matter, and thus no authority to pay for 
Dewey, Ballantine’s preparation for and assistance in support of Mr 
McKean’s appearance before the Senate Judiciary Committee 

With respect to the GAO and OGE investigations into the Littler, Men- 
delson matter, the Board, m our opinion, was authorized to expend 
funds for the legal services of Dewey, Ballantine. In particular, Mr. 
McKean’s actions with respect to the contract award were taken m his 
capacity as a Board member Considermg the Board’s broad authority to 
expend such funds as it “deems necessary,” we have no basis to qucs- 
tion the Board’s authority to use the assistance of the firm m respondmg 
to GAO and OGE mvestigations. We believe the firm’s services were ren- 
dered in furtherance of Postal Service functions and hence the legal fees 
were not for matters personal to Mr McKean 

Question 3. Was Mr McKean’s involvement in the Board’s payment of 
Dewey, Ballantine’s fees for legal services rendered during the congres- 
sional investigations legal and/or proper? 
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Answer: When legal assistance was needed in connection with the con- 
gressional investigations which began in 1983, Mr. Robert Hardesty was 
Chairman of the Board of Governors. Mr. Hardesty, apparently at Mr. 
McKean’s request, directed Dewey, Ballantine to provide legal support 
to the Board and to investigate the allegations reported in the press con- 
cerning Mr. McKean’s appointment. Mr. McKean also informed the 
Board that he had asked the firm to “assist me in cooperating with the 
mvestlgation and to provide any legal advice which may be requu-ed in 
that regard.” Transcript of Closed Meeting of the Board of Governors at 
1 (April 1984). Mr. McKean’s actions with respect to obtaining the assls- 
tance of Dewey, Ballantine was consist,ent with procedures established 
by the Board, and we can fmd no basis to criticize Mr. McKean’s actions 
m this regard. 

With respect to the Board’s payment of the firm’s fees, during eight 
Board meetings from April 1984 to August 1985, Mr. McKean raised the 
issue of the legality and propriety of the Board’s decision to obtain and 
pay for the assistance of Dewey, Ballantine. Based on our review of 
Board transcripts, Mr. McKean’s participation at these Board meetings 
involved answering any of the Board members’ questions concerning the 
facts. At these meetings, the Board members repeatedly discussed the 
fees, and were made fully aware that Mr. Califano considered the 
Board’s payment of such fees a legal expenditure. No Board member 
opposed payment of the firm’s legal fees, and all the Board members 
apparently considered payment of the fees a proper expenditure of the 
Board 

One issue raised by Mr McKean’s mvolvement m the Board’s decision to 
pay Dewey, Ballantine’s fees, particularly with respect to the fees for 
Mr. Califano’s preparation for and presence at the Senate hearings, 1s 
whether Mr. McKean violated federal conflict of interest laws The spe- 
cific issue is whether, considering the nature of Mr. McKean’s mvolve- 
ment in the Board’s decision, Mr McKean violated the prohlbltlon 
against a federal employee acting for the government where the 
employee’s private economic interests are involved. In this regard, 18 
U.S.C. § 208(a) provides that a federal employee cannot participate, per- 
sonally and substantially, “through decision, approval, disapproval, rcc- 
ommendation, the rendering of advice, investigation, or otherwise,” in a 
matter in which the employee has a financial interest. 

Section 208(a) was enacted as part of a general revision of the bribery 
and conflict of interest laws Pub L. No 87-849,76 Stat 1119 (1962). 
This revision was promoted by “a growing concern, both in and out of 
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Congress, with the ever present and perplexing problems of how best to 
assure high ethical standards m the conduct of the Federal Govern- 
ment.” 11X. Rep No 748, 87th Cong., 1st Sess. 2 (1962). To violate sec- 
tion 208(a), a federal employee must (1) engage m the kinds of personal 
participation prohibited under the statute and (2) have a financial 
interest m the matter. Our review did not establish that Mr. McKean 
participated, personally and substantially, m the kinds of actlvltles set 
forth in 18 1J.S C. § 208(a), nor can we identify any fmanclal interest 
that Mr. McKean may have had in the matter 
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DEWEY, BALLANTINE, BUSHBY, PALMER & WOOD 

1775 PENNSYLVANIA AVENUE, N W 

WASHINGTON, D C 20006 

Andrea Kale, Esq. 
General Accounting Office 
441 G Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 

August 18, 1986 CABLL DEWBALAU 

Dear Ms. Kole: 

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to your draft 
report on the Authority of the Postal Service to Expend 
Funds for Legal Support Services. 

The draft report concerns certain legal services pro- 
vided by our firm to the Board of Governors of the Postal 
Service in our capacity as counsel to the Board. The ser- 
vices relate to an inquiry that we conducted in the fall of 
1983, at the direction of Chairman Robert L. Hardesty, into 
questions raised in the press and under investigation by the 
General Accounting Office concerning the appointment of 
John R. McKean to the Board, and to the assistance we pro- 
vided to ensure full cooperation with (1) Senate hearings on 
the nomination of Edwin Meese, III, to be Attorney General, 
(2) an Independent Counsel’s investigation of Mr. Meese, and 
(3) an investigation by the GAO and the Office of Government 
Ethics concerning the award of a Postal Service contract to 
the law firm of Littler, Mendelson, Fastiff & Tichy. 

Your draft report finds that the Board had authority to 
approve payment for the vast majority of legal services at 
issue here. Specifically, it finds that 

1. “[Tlhe Board has authority to approve all 
Postal Service expenditures, including expen- 
ditures of the Board.” (P.4) 

Y 
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Page 2 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

“The Postal Service has broad authority to 
expend such funds as It deems necessary for 
legal services rendered in support of the 
Postal Service or its Board of Governors.” 
(P.5) 

“[Tlhe Board had an interest In conducting an 
independent investrgation in response to 
allegations that Mr. McKean had unlawfully 
obtained his position on the Board.” (P.8) 

“[Tlhe Board had an offlclal interest in 
responding to inquiries from congressional 
committees and the independent counsel. 
Given its broad discretion, we cannot legally 
ob3ect to the Board using Dewey, Ballantine 
to handle the requests for information.” 
(P.8) 

“With respect to the GAO and OGE investrga- 
tions into the Littler, Mendelson matter, the 
Board, in our opinion, was authorized to 
expend funds for the legal services of Dewey, 
Ballantine.” (P.9) 

“Mr. McKean’s actions with respect to obtain- 
ing the assistance of Dewey, Ballantine was 
consistent with procedures established by the 
Board, and we can find no basis to criticize 
Mr. McKean’s actions in this regard.” (P.10) 

We agree with all of the above findings of the draft 
report. 

The draft report disputes the Board’s authority to 
authorize one aspect of the legal services at issue here. 
It states that 

“[iln our opinion . . . the Postal Service did not 
have an official interest in preparing Mr. McKean 
for his testimony before the Senate Judiciary 
Committee, and in maklng Mr. Califano available to 
accompany him to the hearings.” (P.8) 

Based on that finding, it concludes that the Board had “no 
authorrty to pay for Dewey, Ballantine’s preparation for and 
assistance in support of Mr. McKean’s appearance before the 
Senate Judiciary Committee.” (P.9) 

I * 
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The draft report notes that your opinion on this matter 
is “advisory only” since the “GAO does not have authority to 
render binding decisions with respect to matters involving 
Postal Service expenditures.” (P.8, n.4) Despite Its advl- 
sory nature, your opinion on this point deserves a detailed 
response because, in our Judgment, it misapprehends the 
interests of the Postal Service in this matter and 
misconceives the powers and responsibilities that Congress 
assigned to the Board under the Postal Reorganization Act. 

Your analysis raises two basic questions: First, was 
there a connection between the legal services at issue here 
(preparing Mr. McKean for and accompanying him to the Senate 
hearing) and the interests of the Postal Service? And 
second, who should decide whether there was such a connec- 
t ion? We disagree with the draft report’s reasoning and 
conclusions on each of these questions. 

1. The Interests of the Postal Service 

Your report indicates that the GAO can discern no in- 
terest of the Postal Service in providing assistance to the 
Chairman of its Board to enable him to respond effectively 
to a request from a Senate Committee that he give testimony 
about his appointment to the Board. That position is 
plainly in error. Indeed , it is contradicted by the express 
findings of the draft report itself. 

The Senate Committee asked Mr. McKean to appear to 
testify on matters related directly to his tenure on the 
Board. Mr. McKean was not under investigation by the Senate 
Committee. Contrary to the assertion in your report, the 
legal services authorized by the Board were not for the 
purpose of “defend[ ingl” him. (P.9) Mr. McKean was asked to 
testify about allegations concerning the manner in which the 
President had appointed a member of the Board. As the 
agency directly concerned, the Postal Service had much more 
than lust an interest in cooperating fully with the Senate 
Committee’s investigation; rt had an obligation to do so. 

The allegations about which Mr. McKean was asked to 
testify threatened to undermine public confidence in the 
integrity of the Board and all its actions. Recognizing the 
obvious interests of the Postal Service in addressing these 
concerns, the Board had already conducted its own investiga- 
tion. By the time of the Senate Committee hearing, the ’ 
Board had been advised, on the basis of that internal re- 

- 
- 
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Nowonp 18 

Nowonp 17 

Nowonp 17 

view, that the susprcrons about the process by which 
Mr. McKean was appornted were unfounded. To ensure that the 
Senate Commrttee could explore these questrons thoroughly 
and reach Its own judgment about the integrity of the ap- 
pointment, the Board was determined to cooperate fully with 
the Senate Commrttee Inquiry. To that end, and at the 
Board’s dlrectron, we responded to numerous questions from 
the Committee staff, gathered and submitted a substantial 
amount of factual rnformation that the Committee requested, 
and, when Mr. McKean was asked to testrfy, assisted him in 
preparing for the hearing and accompanied him to it. 

Out of all these actlvltles, the draft report singles 
out the trme spent assisting Mr. McKean to prepare for the 
Senate hearing, and accompanying him to it, and rt declares 
that the Postal Servrce had no interest in this one aspect 
of the services our firm was asked to provide. The only 
explanation offered by the report for slngllng out these 
services 1s that “the hearings addressed Mr. McKean’s ac- 
tions that occurred prior to his appointment . . . .” (P.9) 
That explanation is wholly inadequate to justify the conclu- 
sion stated In the draft report. 

The draft report itself explicitly recognizes that “the 
Board had an interest in conducting an independent InvestI- 
gation in response to allegations that Mr. McKean had unlaw- 
fully obtained his posltlon on the Board.” (P.6) Yet it 
was precisely these same allegatlons that Mr. McKean was 
asked to testify about at the Senate Committee hearing. The 
draft report nowhere explains the reasoning that underlies 
its startling conclusion that even though the Board had an --. 
interest in conducting its own lnvestlgatlon into the mat- 
ter, it did not have an interest in cooperating with a Sen 
ate Commltte~nvestlgatlng the same matter. 

What makes the conclusion even more dlfflcult to under 
stand is the draft report’s explicit acknowledgment that the 
Postal Servrce did, of course, have “an official interest- ln 
rrspondlnq to lnqulrles from congressional committees and 
the independent counsel.” (P.8) Thus, the draft report 
would have one believe that even though the Postal Service 
had an interest in responding to congressional lnqulrres on 
ms sublect, it. had that interest only so long as the re 
sponses were not provided in person by the Board’s Chairman 
at a hearing he was asked to attend by the Senate Committee. 

The plain fact 1s that the Board had an Interest in 
satisfying itself about the allegations concerning Mr. 

* 
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McKean’s appointment and, with public confidence in the 
Integrity of the Board very much at stake, it also had an 
interest in cooperating fully with a Senate Committee that 
wanted to explore these same questions. As part of that 
cooperative effort, the Board directed us to assist Mr. 
McKean in preparing for the Senate hearing. Under these 
circumstances, we see no reasonable basis on which one could 
conclude that the testimony of the Board’s Chairman was 
unconnected with any Interest of the Postal Service or the 
Board. 

Now on Ip 19 

2. The Board’s Responsibility 

The analysis of the draft report is flawed not only 
because it falls to recognize the interest of the Postal 
Service in Mr. McKean’s testimony before the Senate Commlt- 
tee, but also because it disregards a fundamental principle 
of the Postal Reorganization Act -- namely, that the Postal 
Service 1s to determine the necessity of its own expendl- 
tures. * 

As your report acknowledges, the Board on numerous 
occasions discussed the legal services at issue here, and 
“all the Board members apparently considered pa ment 
fees a proper expenditure of the Board.” (P.ll Y 

of the 
Yet your 

report concludes that the Board lacked authority to approve 
payment as to one aspect of these legal services because the 
Board’s Judgment about the interests of the Postal Service 
does not coincide with the GAO’s. 

One of the central recommendations of the Kappel Com- 
mission was that the new postal entity should have “the 
authority to determine the character and necessity of its 
expenditures . . . .” The President’s Commission on Postal 
Organization, Towards Postal Excellence 55 (1968). Congress 

* See, e.g., 39 U.S.C. s 2008(c): 

“Subject only to the provisions of this chapter, 
the Postal Service is authorized to make such 
expenditures and to enter into such contracts, 
aoreements, and arrangements, upon such terms and 
condltlons and in such manner as it deems neces- 
sary . . . .‘I (Emphasis supplied). 

L 
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implemented that recommendation! and, as a result, the 
Postal Service en3oys in its “fiscal affairs” a “greater 
degree of autonomy than that enJoyed by the executive 
agent ies. 1’ Milner v. Bolqer, 546 F. Supp. 375, 379 (E.D. 
Cal. 1982). Except as specifically provided, “no Federal 
law dealing with public or Federal contracts, property, 
works, officers, employees, budgets, or funds, . . shall 
apply to the exercise of the powers of the Postal Service.” 
39 U.S.C. s 410(a). 

The draft report ignores these basic principles, which 
go to the heart of the congressional scheme. Under the view 
expressed in the draft report, the Board’s authority to 
determine the necessity of its expenditures is subject to an 
implied limitation: the expenditure must serve the inter- 
ests of the Postal Service as defined by the GAO. 

That view -- unsupported by precedent or reference to 
the language or legislative history of the Act -- would 
undermine a central purpose of the statutory scheme and 
could severely impair the Board’s ability to direct the 
exercise of the power of the Postal Service. Cf. Governors 
of the United States Postal Service v. Posta. cte Commis- 
slon, 654 F.2d im 113-14 (D.C. Cir. 1981). Kappel Conunis- 
% Report, supra, at 33-34, 55. The extekt of the poten- 
teal interference with the ability of the Postal Service to 
administer its affairs in a “businesslike” way, cf. H.R. 
Rep. No. 91-1104, 91st Cong., 2d Sess. 6 (197O),is demon- 
strated by the examples offered in the draft report, They 
indicate that, under the GAO’s approach, the Postal Service 
would have “no authority” to provide for preemployment medi- 
cal examinations for prospective employees or to pay bar 
admission fees for attorneys in its Law Department, since 
the GAO would consider these expenditures “personal” and 
“prlmarlly of benefit to the employee.” (P.7, n.3) In our 
Judgment, it could hardly be more clear that the Postal 
Service does have the authority to make such expenditures if 
it deemsthem “incidental, necessary, or appropriate to the 
carrying on of its functions . . . .” 39 U.S.C. s 401(10). 
The GAO may have a different view about the wisdom of the 
expenditures and about whether they would, in fact, further 
the interests of the Institution. But Congress assigned to 
the Postal Service, and not the GAO, the responsibility to 
determine which expenditures would further its interests. 
The fact that the GAO might on occasion define the interests 
of the Postal Service differently does not mean that the 
Postal Service lacks authority to make the expenditures. 
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In sum, we believe that the Board had a clear and sub- 
stantial interest in assisting its Chairman to respond ef- 
fectively to a request from a Senate Committee for testimony 
about his appointment to the Board. Although the GAO evi- 
dently disagrees, there cannot be any serious question about 
the leqal authority of the Postal Service to provide the 
assistance. Pursuant to the responsibility conferred on it 
by Congress to direct the exercise of the power of the 
Postal Service, the Board concluded that the Postal Service 
did have an interest in the matter and that the expenditure 
was appropriate. Since the Act expressly assigns to the 
Postal Service the responsibility to determine the necessity 
of its own expenditures, the expenditure was plainly within 
the Board’s authority. 

As noted at the outset, we appreciate the opportunity 
to comment on the draft report. It is our understanding 
that our comments will be included as an appendix to your 
report when it is released in final form. Since our com- 
ments quote extensively from the text of the draft report, 
and since we understand that the draft may be revised prior 
to publication, we would be grateful if you could bring any 
significant changes to our attention prior to publication so 
that we can adjust our comments accordingly. 

Yours very truly 

DEWEY, BALLANTINE, BUSHBY, 
PALMER & WOOD 

fl 
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